

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2014/15



CONTENTS

| 1. | Members of the Authority | |
|------|---|-----|
| 2. | Officers of the Authority | |
| 3. | Auditors | |
| 4. | Explanatory Foreword | |
| 4.1 | The Authority | 6 |
| 4.2 | The Accounts | 6 |
| 4.3 | Revenue Spending | 7 |
| 4.4 | Capital Programme | 9 |
| 4.5 | Borrowing | .10 |
| 4.6 | Pension Schemes | |
| 4.7 | Royal Berkshire Fire & Rescue (Training) Limited | .11 |
| 5. | Statement of Responsibilities | |
| 6. | Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Royal Berkshire Fire Authority | .13 |
| 7. | Core Financial Statements | .16 |
| 7.1 | Movement in Reserves Statement | .16 |
| 7.2 | Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | .18 |
| 7.3 | Balance Sheet | .19 |
| 7.4 | Cash Flow Statement | .20 |
| 8. | Notes to Core Financial Statements | .21 |
| 8.1 | Accounting Policies | .21 |
| 8.2 | Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under | |
| | Regulations | .36 |
| 8.3 | Earmarked Reserves | .39 |
| 8.4 | Accounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decision | .41 |
| 8.5 | Other Operating Expenditure | .45 |
| 8.6 | Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure | .45 |
| 8.7 | Taxation and Non Specific Grant Incomes | .45 |
| 8.8 | Grant Income | .46 |
| 8.9 | Members' Allowances | .47 |
| 8.10 | Officers' Remuneration | .47 |
| 8.11 | Exit Packages and Termination Benefits | .49 |
| 8.12 | External Audit Costs | .50 |
| 8.13 | Property, Plant and Equipment | .50 |
| 8.14 | Investment Properties | .54 |
| 8.15 | Capital Expenditure and Financing | .55 |
| 8.16 | Financial Instruments | |
| 8.17 | Nature and Extent of Risk Arising from Financial Instruments | .58 |
| 8.18 | Assets Held for Sale | .64 |
| 8.19 | Inventories | .65 |
| 8.20 | Debtors and Prepayments | |
| 8.21 | Cash and Cash Equivalents | |
| 8.22 | Creditors and Income in Advance | .66 |
| 8.23 | Provisions | |
| 8.24 | Contingent Liabilities | .67 |
| 8.25 | Leases | .68 |
| 8.26 | Pensions Costs | |
| 8.27 | Usable Reserves | .76 |
| 8.28 | Unusable Reserves | .77 |
| 8.29 | Related Parties | .81 |
| 8.30 | Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies | .83 |

| 8.31 | Assumptions about the future and sources of estimation uncertainty | 83 |
|------|--|----|
| 8.32 | Events after the Balance Sheet date | 85 |
| 8.33 | Standards issued but not yet adopted | 85 |
| 8.34 | Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities | |
| 8.35 | Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities | 86 |
| 8.36 | | |
| 9. | Financial Statements for the Firefighters' Pension Fund | |
| | Glossary of Financial Terms | |
| | | |

1. Members of the Authority

The Authority is made up of 25 Members who are appointed in proportion to the number of local government electors in each authority area.

| Bracknell Forest Borough Council | Slough Borough Council |
|----------------------------------|---|
| Colin Dudley (Chairman) | Frank Abe |
| lain McCracken | Joginder Bal |
| Alan Ward | Edward Plenty |
| | Ishrat Shah |
| Reading Borough Council | The Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead |
| Debs Absolom | Christine Bateson |
| Paul Gittings | Phillip Bicknell |
| Eileen McElligott | David Burbage |
| Chris Maskell | John Lenton |
| Richard Willis | |
| West Berkshire District Council | Wokingham Borough Council |
| Jeff Brooks | Alaistair Auty |
| Paul Bryant | lan Pittock |
| Adrian Edwards | Tom McCann |
| Emma Webster | Pauline Helliar-Symons (Vice-Chairman) |
| | Angus Ross |

2. Officers of the Authority

Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive Andy Fry

Deputy Chief Fire Officer and Monitoring Officer Trevor Ferguson

Head of Finance Conor Byrne

3. Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP
Maria Grindley – Audit Director

4. Explanatory Foreword

4.1 The Authority

Royal Berkshire Fire Authority provides cover from 18 fire stations across the county, stretching from Slough and Langley in the east to Lambourn and Newbury in the west. Its area includes one of Europe's busiest motorways, busy urban centres, suburban communities and large rural areas.

4.2 The Accounts

The Accounting Statements which follow form the Fire Authority's Statutory Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2015.

The accounts are drawn up in accordance with the accounting policies that are set out in detail in section 8.1.

A description of the core financial statements is given below:

a) Movement in Reserves Statement

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The *Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services* line shows the true economic cost of providing the Authority's services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

b) Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

c) Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value at the Balance Sheet date of assets and liabilities recognised by the Authority. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves is usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example capital receipts may only be used to fund capital expenditure). The second category of reserves is those that the Authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve) where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets were sold.

d) Cash Flow Statement

This statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

4.3 Revenue Spending

Revenue budgets and expenditure for 2014/15 are shown in the table below.

| | to Mar 15 Budget £000 | to Mar 15 Outturn £000 | to Mar 15 Variance £000 |
|---|-----------------------------|------------------------------|-------------------------------|
| EMPLOYEE COSTS | £000 | £000 | 2,000 |
| Uniformed | 19,224 | 18,667 | (557) |
| Non-uniformed | 5,814 | 6,076 | 262 |
| Training | 271 | 207 | (64) |
| Other | 129 25,438 | 245 25,195 | 116 (243) |
| PREMISES | 25,456 | 25,195 | (243) |
| Repairs and Maintenance | 749 | 703 | (46) |
| Dual running costs and BHQ move | 165 | 118 | (47) |
| Rates | 508 | 510 | 2 |
| Cleaning | 240 | 226 | (14) |
| Utilities | 337 | 348 | 11 (0.4) |
| SUPPLIES | 1,999 | 1,905 | (94) |
| Insurance | 372 | 319 | (53) |
| Equipment | 680 | 716 | 36 |
| IS Equipment and Licences | 644 | 636 | (8) |
| Clothing and PPE | 303 | 302 | (1) |
| Communications | 872 | 889 | 17 |
| Occupational Health | 170 | 162 | (8) |
| Print/Stationery/Publications/Subscriptions | 138 | 131 | (7) |
| Hydrant Repairs | 44 | 39 | (5) |
| Community Fire Safety Supplies Other | 213 452 | 215 545 | 2 93 |
| Otilei | 3,888 | 3,954 | 66 |
| CONTRACTS | 3,555 | 2,222 | |
| Legal | 151 | 203 | 52 |
| Other | 420 | 411 | (9) |
| TRANSPORT | 571 | 614 | 43 |
| TRANSPORT | 744 | 700 | (0) |
| Vehicle Running Costs Transport Leasing / Hire Charges | 744 5 | 736 | (8) |
| Travel | 309 | 298 | (4) (11) |
| Tid Vol | 1,058 | 1,035 | (23) |
| INCOME | | | |
| Fees & Charges | (65) | (52) | 13 |
| Other | (1,440) | (1,553) | (113) |
| | (1,505) | (1,605) | (100) |
| NET COST OF SERVICES | 31,449 | 31,098 | (351) |
| Donaigna | 270 | 541 | 460 |
| Pensions Interest paid | 378 392 | 392 | 163 0 |
| Interest received & other investment income | (23) | (31) | (8) |
| | | | |
| NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE | 32,196 | 32,000 | (196) |
| NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE | 32,196 | 32,000 | (196) |
| NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE Revenue Funding of Capital | 32,196 994 | 32,000 | (196) |
| NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE Revenue Funding of Capital Appropriation to / (from) Reserves | 32,196 994 726 | 32,000 994 726 | (196) 0 0 |
| NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE Revenue Funding of Capital | 32,196 994 | 32,000 | (196) |

Explanation of Major Revenue Budget Variances

The costs of industrial action amounted to £895,000. These costs were partly covered by the industrial action contingency reserve of £300,000 which was approved by the Fire Authority as part of the 2014/15 Budget.

Despite the additional costs identified above, there was still a corporate underspend of £214,000. As in previous years, this can largely be explained by the on-going difficulties in recruiting retained firefighters. Uniformed employee numbers were also below budgeted establishment.

Training expenditure was below budget due to action short of strike (ASOS). However, ASOS has now been called off so training has recommenced.

Expenditure on the *Other Employee Costs* line is above the profiled budget as a result of recruitment costs of senior employees and recruitment relating to industrial action.

The Repairs and Maintenance budget was underspent as the Estates team has had to focus on the delivery of strategic building projects.

Dual running costs came in below budget due to the later than anticipated move to Newsham Court.

The insurance line was underspent as set up costs for the new mutual insurance company were funded by Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service as well as by a successful bid from the Government's Transformation Fund.

Expenditure on equipment was above budget mainly as a result of measures taken in relation to industrial action.

The Strategic Miscellaneous line was over budget due to the publicity costs of industrial action.

Legal costs have run ahead of budget because of additional expenditure incurred in relation to the Authority's major projects and programmes.

The Pensions line was above budget due to a provision that was made to cover possible repayments to the Government relating to injury awards. As this is an issue affecting most fire and rescue services, the Government is still considering its position.

The favourable variance on the Other Income line mainly relates to re-imbursement of court costs in relation to prosecutions. The Authority also received additional rental income for hosting telecommunication masts.

4.4 Capital Programme

Capital expenditure in 2014/15 was £1,813,000 against a budget of £4,602,000 (including budgets brought forward from the previous year and budgets that have been grant or revenue funded but excluding extended finance leases).

| | to Mar 15 | to Mar 15 | to Mar 15 |
|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| | Budget | Outturn | Variance |
| | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| Premises | 3,187 | 1,027 | (2,160) |
| Equipment | 1,053 | 741 | (312) |
| Vehicles | 362 | 45 | (317) |
| Total | 4,602 | 1,813 | (2,789) |

The variance on the premises budget is due to several major projects being put on hold, pending the outcome of a refreshed integrated risk management plan.

The equipment budget was mainly underspent due to delays in rolling out telemetry equipment for breathing apparatus. The delays have resulted from the need to ensure that there will be no interference from 4G technology. IT equipment was purchased for the future Thames Valley Fire Control Service using funding from Government.

Vehicle expenditure was lower than budget as the purchase of one water tender was deferred until 2015/16 and the purchase of light vehicles was put on hold pending a review of fleet.

4.5 **Borrowing**

All of the Fire Authority's loans are with the Public Works Loan Board and are used to fund capital expenditure. The Fire Authority did not need to take out additional loans during 2014/15 so total debt remained at £8.842 million as at 31 March 2015.

4.6 Pension Schemes

The 1992 Firefighters' Pension Scheme was closed to new members from April 2006. From this date new members and retained firefighters had the option to join the 2006 Firefighters' Pension Scheme. Both schemes are unfunded. The negative net values reflect the unfunded liability facing this Authority (other fire authorities face similar liabilities). The increase in the liabilities as at 31 March 2015 is due to the fall in the net discount rate. The Authority is not currently required to make any financial provision for these future commitments and there is no effect on Council Tax.

The Authority pays employer contributions for uniformed staff into a separate Pensions Account. These contributions consist of a flat rate contribution and an ill-health charge. Ill-health charges are spread over three years. Contributions are used to pay pensions for uniformed staff and any shortfall is made up by the Government.

The Local Government Pension Scheme for non-uniformed employees is accounted for as a funded defined benefits scheme. As with the Firefighters' Pension Schemes, there has been an increase in the liabilities as at 31 March 2015 due to a fall in the net discount rate.

4.7 Royal Berkshire Fire & Rescue (Training) Limited

Royal Berkshire Fire & Rescue (Training) Limited was set up by the Authority to ensure the continued provision of fire safety training on a commercial basis. The company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Authority and started trading on 1 January 2009. Prior to this date the courses were run by a training team within the Authority. The company made a profit of £5,000 before tax during 2014/15. During this period, the Authority charged the company £62,000 for accommodation and provision of services.

Group accounts have not been produced as the revenue generated by the company during 2014/15 is immaterial compared to the size of the Authority's budget.

Conor Byrne Head of Finance

5. Statement of Responsibilities

The Fire Authority is required:

- to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one of its officers (for the Fire Authority, that officer is the Head of Finance) has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs;
- to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets;
- to approve the Statement of Accounts.

Head of Finance's Responsibilities

The Head of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Authority's Statement of Accounts which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting ("the Code"), is required to present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2015.

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Head of Finance has:

- selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
- made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
- complied with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority.

The Head of Finance has also:

- kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
- taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Head of Finance's Certificate

I certify that the statement of accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority for the financial year 2014/15 and was prepared in accordance with the accounting policies in section 8.1.

Conor Byrne Head of Finance

30 September 2015

Approval of the Accounts

I hereby confirm that these accounts were approved by the Fire Authority at its meeting on 30 September 2015.

Colin Dudley
Chairman of the Fire Authority

30 September 2015

6. Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Royal Berkshire Fire Authority

Opinion on the Authority financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Royal Berkshire Fire Authority for the year ended 31 March 2015 under the Audit Commission Act 1998 (as transitionally saved). The financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 8.1 to 8.36 and include the firefighters' pension fund financial statements comprising the Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and the related note 9. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15.

This report is made solely to the members of Royal Berkshire Fire Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 2010. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Head of Finance and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Head of Finance's Responsibilities set out on page 12, the Head of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Authority's financial statements in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Head of Finance; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2014/15 to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the financial position of Royal Berkshire Fire Authority as at 31 March 2015 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and
- have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15.

Opinion on other matters

In our opinion, the information given in the Statement of Accounts 2014/15 for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:

- in our opinion the annual governance statement does not comply with 'Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: a Framework' published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007 (updated as at December 2012);
- we issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998:
- we designate under section 11 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 any recommendation as one that requires the Authority to consider it at a public meeting and to decide what action to take in response; or
- we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Audit Commission Act 1998.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Conclusion on the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

Respective responsibilities of the Authority and the auditor

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria specified by the Audit Commission in October 2014.

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria, published by the Audit Commission in October 2014, as to whether the Authority has proper arrangements for:

- securing financial resilience; and
- challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those necessary for us to consider under its Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2015.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the Authority had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria published by the Audit Commission in October 2014, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Royal Berkshire Fire Authority has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Royal Berkshire Fire Authority in accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission.

Maria Grindley for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Appointed Auditor Reading 30/09/2015

7. Core Financial Statements

7.1 Movement in Reserves Statement

Movement in 2014/15

| | Notes | General Fund Balance £000 | Earmarked Reserves £000 | Reserve | Grants Unapplied | Total Usable Reserves | Reserves | Reserves |
|--|-------|------------------------------------|-------------------------------|---------|---------------------|--------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Balance as at 31 March 2014 | | 2,277 | 7,411 | 0 | 0 | 9,688 | (269,059) | (259,371) |
| Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services | CIES | (11,928) | ,, | | | (11,928) | (200,000) | (11,928) |
| Other Comprehensive Expenditure and Income | CIES | 7 | | | | 7 | (43,252) | (43,245) |
| Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure | | (11,921) | 0 | 0 | 0 | (11,921) | (43,252) | (55,173) |
| Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations | 8.2 | 12,896 | | 58 | 146 | 13,100 | (13,100) | 0 |
| Net Increase/(Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves | | 975 | 0 | 58 | 146 | 1,179 | (56,352) | (55,173) |
| Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves | 8.3 | (939) | 939 | | | 0 | | 0 |
| Increase / (Decrease) in the year | | 36 | 939 | 58 | 146 | 1,179 | (56,352) | (55,173) |
| Balance as at 31 March 2015 | | 2,313 | 8,350 | 58 | 146 | 10,867 | (325,411) | (314,544) |

Movement in 2013/14

| | Notes | General Fund Balance Restated | Earmarked Reserves | | Grants | Total Usable | Unusable Reserves Restated | Total Authority Reserves |
|--|-------|--|-----------------------|------|---------|--------------|----------------------------------|--------------------------------|
| | | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Balance as at 31 March 2013 | | 2,253 | 6,412 | 0 | 1,290 | 9,955 | (243,558) | (233,603) |
| Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services | CIES | (8,990) | | | | (8,990) | | (8,990) |
| Other Comprehensive Expenditure and Income | CIES | 5 | | | | 5 | (16,783) | (16,778) |
| Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure | | (8,985) | 0 | 0 | 0 | (8,985) | (16,783) | (25,768) |
| Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations | 8.2 | 10,008 | | | (1,290) | 8,718 | (8,718) | 0 |
| Net Increase/(Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves | | 1,023 | 0 | 0 | (1,290) | (267) | (25,501) | (25,768) |
| Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves | 8.3 | (999) | 999 | | | 0 | | 0 |
| Increase / (Decrease) in the year | | 24 | 999 | 0 | (1,290) | (267) | (25,501) | (25,768) |
| Balance as at 31 March 2014 | | 2,277 | 7,411 | 0 | 0 | 9,688 | (269,059) | (259,371) |

The presentation of transactions affecting the General Fund Balance and Unusable Reserves has been simplified and is comparable with the Movement in Reserves Statement for 2014/15. There is no impact on reserve balances. Note 8.2 has also been restated to reflect this revised presentation.

7.2 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

| | 2013/14 | | | | | | |
|------------------------------|-------------------------|----------------------------|---|---------|------------------------------|-------------------------|----------------------------|
| Gross Expenditure £000 | Gross Income £000 | Net Expenditure £000 | | Notes | Gross Expenditure £000 | Gross Income £000 | Net Expenditure £000 |
| £000 | 2.000 | £000 | Community Fire Safety | | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| 6,200 1,596 | (227) (8) | 5,973 1,588 | Prevention and Education Statutory Inspection | | 6,807 1,477 | (221) (110) | 6,586 1,367 |
| | | | Fire Fighting and Rescue Operations | | | | |
| 2,611 | (447) | 2,164 | Communications and Mobilising | | 3,239 | (1,083) | 2,156 |
| 28,156 | (2,350) | 25,806 | Operational Response | | 26,614 | (268) | 26,346 |
| 233 | | 233 | Securing Water Supplies | | 193 | (3) | 190 |
| 44 | | 44 | Fire Service Emergency Planning | | 40 | | 40 |
| 355 | | 355 | Corporate & Democratic Core Corporate Management | | 456 | (6) | 450 |
| 724 | | 724 | Democratic Representation & Management | | 780 | | 780 |
| 39,919 | (3,032) | 36,887 | Net Cost of Services | 8.4 | 39,606 | (1,691) | 37,915 |
| | | (1) | Other operating expenditure | 8.5 | | | (55) |
| | | 12,229 | Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure | 8.6 | | | 12,994 |
| | | (40,125) | Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income | 8.7 | | | (38,926) |
| | | 8,990 | (Surplus) or Deficit on the Pro | ovision | of Services | | 11,928 |
| | | (1,136) | (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment assets | 8.28 i | | | (3,894) |
| | | 17,914 | Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension assets/liabilities | | | | 47,139 |
| | | 16,778 | Other Comprehensive Incom | e and E | xpenditure | | 43,245 |
| | | 25,768 | Total Comprehensive Income | and Ex | penditure | | 55,173 |

7.3 Balance Sheet

| 31 March 2014 £000 | l . | Notes | 31 March 2015 £000 |
|-----------------------|-------------------------------------|---------|---|
| 33,344 | Property, Plant & Equipment | 8.13 | 34,707 |
| 688 | Investment Property | 8.14 | 793 |
| 34,032 | Long Term Assets | | 35,500 |
| 2,775 | Short Term Investments | 8.16 | 2,782 |
| 0 | Assets held for sale | 8.18 | 2,904 |
| 152 | Inventories | 8.19 | 103 |
| 5,371 | Short Term Debtors | 8.20 | 3,110 |
| 839 | Prepayments | 8.20 | 849 |
| 8,195 | Cash and Cash Equivalents | 8.21 | 10,162 |
| 17,332 | Current Assets | | 19,910 |
| (5,142) | Short Term Creditors | 8.22 | (3,152) |
| (2) | Income in Advance | 8.22 | (22) |
| (202) | Short-term Provisions - holiday pay | 8.28v | (187) |
| (306) | Provisions | 8.23 | (760) |
| (30) | Lease Liabilities | 8.25 | (8) |
| (5,682) | Current Liabilities | | (4,129) |
| (189) | Provisions | 8.23 | 0 |
| (8,842) | Long Term Borrowing | 8.16 | (8,842) |
| (296,010) | Pension Liability | 8.26 iv | (356,971) |
| (12) | Capital Grants Receipts in Advance | 8.8 | (12) |
| (305,053) | Long Term Liabilities | | (365,825) |
| (259.371) | Net Assets | | (314,544) |
| (,) | | | (************************************** |
| 9,688 | Usable Reserves | 8.27 | 10,867 |
| (269,059) | Unusable Reserves | 8.28 | (325,411) |
| (259,371) | Total Reserves | | (314,544) |

7.4 Cash Flow Statement

| 2013/14 £000 | | Notes | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|--|-------|-----------------|
| | Net cash inflow / (outflow) from: | | |
| 2,049 | Operating Activities | 8.34 | 2,595 |
| (2,797) | Investing Activities | 8.35 | (601) |
| (96) | Financing Activities | 8.36 | (27) |
| (844) | Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents | | 1,967 |
| 9,039 | Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting pe | 8,195 | |
| 8,195 | Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting periods | od | 10,162 |

8. Notes to Core Financial Statements

8.1 Accounting Policies

i General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority's transactions for the 2014/15 financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2015. The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by 30 June in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2014/15, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

ii Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In particular:

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers
 the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is
 probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the
 transaction will flow to the Authority.
- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can
 measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is
 probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the
 transaction will flow to the Authority.
- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. If there is a
 gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, then they
 are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.
- Expenses in relation to services received are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.
- Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.
- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

The only exceptions to the above are that:

- Public utility payments are charged at the date of meter reading, and are not apportioned on a time basis.
- Salaries and wages are paid in arrears, and amounts charged correspond to the income tax year.
- Amounts charged on monthly procurement card statements run from March to February rather than April to March in the Accounts.

The effects of these policies are not considered to be material, as they are applied consistently each year.

iii Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the Authority equate to monies held in the Authority's current account and linked savings account. Monies held in these accounts can be withdrawn without notice and are used for the day-to-day running of the Authority.

The Authority also holds monies in call accounts. These deposits are treated as short-term investments as the Authority does not use these balances on a day-to-day basis.

iv Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior-period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior-period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority's financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

V Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding assets during the year:

depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service;

- revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there
 are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the
 losses can be written off;
- amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service.

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue (minimum revenue provision) towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by a contribution from the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

vi **Employee Benefits**

Benefits Payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Authority. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service or, where applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the authority can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the authority recognises costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Pension costs have been provided for in accordance with relevant Government regulations and in accordance with *IAS 19 Employee Benefits*.

IAS 19 is based on the principle that an organisation should account for retirement benefits when it is committed to give them, even if the actual giving will be many years into the future. Inclusion of the attributable share of the fund assets and liabilities does not mean that legal title or obligation has passed from the trustees to the employer. Instead it represents the employer's commitment to increase contributions to make up any shortfall in attributable net assets, or its ability to benefit (via reduced contributions) from a surplus in the scheme.

The Fire Authority participates in three pension schemes, which provide members with defined benefits relating to pay and service. The 1992 Firefighters' Pension Scheme has been closed to new members since April 2006. Recruits and retained firefighters can instead join the 2006 Firefighters Pension Scheme.

Uniformed Firefighters

The two firefighter pension schemes are unfunded defined benefits schemes.

Central Government requires Fire Authorities to keep a separate Pensions Account from which pensions will be paid. On the income side, employer and employee contributions are paid into the account. Transfer values for firefighters that transfer into and out of the scheme are also posted to the account. If the account is in deficit at the end of the financial year, the Government will provide a top-up grant to bring the account into balance.

The pension costs have been assessed in accordance with the advice of a professionally qualified actuary. The latest formal valuation was at 31 March 2012.

The Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is accounted for as a funded defined benefits scheme:

The liabilities of the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of earnings for current employees. Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices.

The assets of the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value.

The latest formal valuation was as at 31 March 2013.

Measurement of the Net Liabilities of the Pension Schemes

There are three main categories: service cost, net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset and remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability or asset.

1. Service cost comprising:

- current service cost the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked;
- past service cost the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years– debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of *Non Distributed Costs*.
- 2. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset): the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time which is charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

3. Remeasurements comprising:

- the return on plan assets which is charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure;
- actuarial gains and losses are changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions. These gains and losses are charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Cost of Retirement Benefits in Relation to the General Fund

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension funds or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Authority also has restricted powers to allow flexible retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

vii Events after the Balance Sheet date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events:
- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period –
 the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a
 category of event would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the
 notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.

viii Financial Instruments

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the *Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure* line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Authority has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into two types:

- loans and receivables assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an active market;
- available-for-sale assets assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or determinable payments.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the *Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure* line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the *Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure* line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the *Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure* line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any impairment losses).

ix Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that:

- the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
- the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as either creditors (revenue grants) or capital receipts in advance (capital grants). When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

X Interests in Companies and Other Entities

Royal Berkshire Fire & Rescue (Training) Limited was set up by the Authority to ensure the continued provision of fire safety training on a commercial basis. The company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Authority and started trading on 1 January 2009. Prior to this date the courses were run by a training team within the Authority.

Group accounts have not been produced as the revenue generated by the company is immaterial compared to the size of the Authority's budget.

xi Inventories

Inventories are reflected in the balance sheet at average historical cost. This is not consistent with IAS 2, which requires inventories to be valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. However, net realisable value would significantly understate the value to the Authority of the assets held, due to the specialised nature of the items. Certain immaterial inventories are treated as current expenditure and charged directly to revenue.

xii Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm's-length. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the *Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure* line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the *Financing* and *Investment Income* line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

xiii Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Authority as Lessee

Finance Leases

Property, plant or equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease's inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

- a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment
 applied to write down the lease liability, and
- a finance charge (debited to the *Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure* line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Authority at the end of the lease period).

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

xiv Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2014/15 (SERCOP). The total absorption costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:

- Corporate and Democratic Core costs relating to the Authority's status as a multifunctional, democratic organisation.
- Non Distributed Costs the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and impairment losses chargeable on Assets Held for Sale.

These two cost categories are defined in SERCOP and accounted for as separate headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing Services.

xv Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. All of the Authority's capital expenditure plans are formulated within the framework of CIPFA's Prudential Code.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement

An Asset is initially measured at cost, comprising:

- the purchase price;
- any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management;
- the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of an asset acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Authority). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Authority.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- non-property assets and assets under construction depreciated historical cost
- all other assets fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued every five years to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value.

Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

- where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains);
- where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

- where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains);
- where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

- Buildings straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by the valuer;
- Vehicles reducing balance over the life of the asset, DCLG donated assets
 straight line over the remaining useful life;
- Plant & Equipment straight-line over the life of the asset.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Component accounting

New components of Property, Plant & Equipment are not shown separately on the Balance Sheet if the value of the component is less than £100,000. Furthermore, components with a value of at least £100,000 are only shown separately on the Balance Sheet where the value of the new component is at least 20 per cent of the value of the remainder of the asset.

Disposals and Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the *Other Operating Expenditure* line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the *Other Operating Expenditure* line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Authority's underlying need to borrow. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

xvi Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Authority may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Authority becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the authority settles the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

xvii Reserves

The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Authority – these reserves are explained in the relevant notes.

xviii Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Authority has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.

xix VAT

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

8.2 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are required by statutory regulations to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Movements in 2014/15 and 2013/14 are shown in the tables below.

| | General Fund Balance | Capital Receipts Reserve | Grants Unapplied | Movement in Unusable Reserves |
|---|----------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------|-------------------------------------|
| 2014/15 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account: | | | | |
| Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | | | | |
| Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets | 1,427 | | | (1,427) |
| Revaluations gains on PPE | 15 | | | (15) |
| Movements in the market value of investment properties debited or credited to the CIES | (105) | | | 105 |
| Capital grant and contributions applied | (965) | | | 965 |
| Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES | (55) | | | 55 |
| Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | | | | |
| Statutory Provision for the repayment of debt - (MRP) | (435) | | | 435 |
| Revenue contribution to finance capital | (994) | | | 994 |
| Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account: | | | | |
| Capital grant unapplied credited to CIES | | | 965 | (965) |
| Application of grants to capital financing transferrred to the Capital Adjustment Account | | | (819) | 819 |
| Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve: | | | | |
| Transfer of proceeds from sale of assets to CIES | | 58 | | (58) |
| Adjustments primarily involving the Pension Reserve: | | | | |
| Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the CIES | 21,063 | | | (21,063) |
| Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year | (3,486) | | | 3,486 |
| Gain in relation to government grant payable to the Pension Fund on the Authority's behalf | (3,755) | | | 3,755 |
| Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account: | | | | |
| Amount by which CT and NDR income credited to the CIES is different from statutory requirements | 202 | | | (202) |
| Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account: | | | | |
| Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CIES on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements | (16) | | | 16 |
| Total Adjustments | 12,896 | 58 | 146 | (13,100) |

| | General Fund Balance Restated | Capital Receipts Reserve | Capital Grants Unapplied | Movement in Unusable Reserves Restated |
|---|--|--------------------------------|--------------------------------|---|
| 2013/14 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account: | | | | |
| Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | | | | |
| Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets | 1,751 | | | (1,751) |
| Revaluations gains on PPE | (149) | | | 149 |
| Movements in the market value of investment properties debited or credited to the CIES | (78) | | | 78 |
| Capital grant and contributions applied | (1,040) | | | 1,040 |
| Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES | 0 | | | 0 |
| Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | | | | |
| Statutory Provision for the repayment of debt - (MRP) | (512) | | | 512 |
| Revenue contribution to finance capital | (1,773) | | | 1,773 |
| Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account: | | | | |
| Application of grants to capital financing transferrred to the Capital Adjustment Account | | | (1,290) | 1,290 |
| Adjustments primarily involving the Pension Reserve: | | | | |
| Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the CIES | 19,723 | | | (19,723) |
| Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year | (3,450) | | | 3,450 |
| Gain in relation to government grant payable to the Pension Fund on the Authority's behalf | (4,364) | | | 4,364 |
| Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account: | | | | |
| Amount by which CT and NDR income credited to the CIES is different from statutory requirements | (119) | | | 119 |
| Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account: | | | | |
| Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CIES on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements | 19 | | | (19) |
| Total Adjustments | 10,008 | 0 | (1,290) | (8,718) |

8.3 Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2014/15.

| | Balance at 31 March 2014 £000 | Transfer In (Out) £000 | Balance at 31 March 2015 £000 | Purpose |
|-------------------------------|--|------------------------------|--|---|
| Budget Carry Forward Reserve | 560 | (63) | 497 | To roll forward specific budget lines where commitments have been made but expenditure has not yet been incurred by the close of the financial year |
| Joint Control Reserve | 256 | (107) | 149 | To meet costs associated with the transition to joint control |
| Detectors Reserve | 179 | (60) | 119 | To provide on-going support to the Fire Prevention Programme |
| Operational Equipment Reserve | 90 | (90) | 0 | To enhance operational response capabilities |
| Grants Received in Advance | 1,127 | (407) | 720 | The unspent balance of grants |
| Vacancy Reserve | 140 | (75) | 65 | To offset fluctuations in employee numbers |
| Budget Contingency Reserve | 496 | | 496 | To offset future cuts in Government funding |
| New Windsor Fire Station | 170 | (170) | 0 | To fund New Windsor Fire Station |
| Development Fund | 4,393 | 1,911 | 6,304 | To fund capital projects |
| Total | 7,411 | 939 | 8,350 | |

Comparative movements in 2013/14

| | Balance at 31 March 2013 £000 | Transfer In (Out) £000 | Balance at 31 March 2014 £000 | Purpose |
|-------------------------------|--|------------------------------|--|---|
| Budget Carry Forward Reserve | 519 | 41 | 560 | To roll forward specific budget lines where commitments have been made but expenditure has not yet been incurred by the close of the financial year |
| Joint Control Reserve | 206 | 50 | 256 | To meet costs associated with the transition to joint control |
| Detectors Reserve | 0 | 179 | 179 | To provide on-going support to the Fire Prevention Programme |
| Operational Equipment Reserve | 40 | 50 | 90 | To enhance operational response capabilities |
| Protective Equipment Reserve | 737 | (737) | 0 | No longer required as costs will be met from base budget |
| Grants Received in Advance | 732 | 395 | 1,127 | The unspent balance of grants including £804,000 for Thames Valley Fire Control Service |
| Vacancy Reserve | 35 | 105 | 140 | To offset fluctuations in employee numbers |
| Budget Contingency Reserve | 496 | 0 | 496 | To offset future cuts in Government funding |
| New Windsor Fire Station | 0 | 170 | 170 | To fund New Windsor Fire Station |
| Development Fund | 3,647 | 746 | 4,393 | To fund capital projects |
| Total | 6,412 | 999 | 7,411 | |

8.4 Accounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decision

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. However, decisions about resource allocation are taken by the Authority on the basis of the budget report, which is prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In particular:

- The minimum revenue provision is charged instead of depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses.
- The cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer's pension contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year.

The income and expenditure recorded in the budget report is as follows:

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|---------------------------------|-----------------|
| 24,720 | Employee Costs | 25,195 |
| 1,977 | Premises | 1,905 |
| 4,854 | Supplies | 3,954 |
| 604 | Contracts | 614 |
| 1,417 | Transport | 1,035 |
| (3,049) | Income | (1,605) |
| 30,523 | Net Cost of Services | 31,098 |
| 344 | Firefighter Pension Costs | 541 |
| 393 | Interest Paid | 392 |
| (32) | Interest Received | (31) |
| 31,228 | Operating Expenditure | 32,000 |
| 1,773 | Revenue Funding of Capital | 994 |
| 436 | Appropriations to/from Reserves | 726 |
| 511 | Minimum Revenue Provision | 434 |
| (19) | Reversal of Accrued Holiday | 16 |
| 33,929 | Total Expenditure | 34,170 |

Reconciliation of Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of income and expenditure relate to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

| 2013/14 £000 | Reconciliation to Net Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|--|-----------------|
| 33,929 | Net Expenditure in the Budget Report | 34,170 |
| (19) | Services and Support Services not in Anaylsis | (5) |
| 9,367 | Add amounts not reported to management | 9,755 |
| (6,390) | Remove amounts reported to management not included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | (6,005) |
| 36,887 | Cost of Services | 37,915 |

Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis

The reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of income and expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis for 2014/15

| Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis | Analysis | | Allocation of recharges | Not reported to management | Not included in Net Cost of Services | Total Cost of Services | Corporate Amounts | Total |
|---|----------|-------|-------------------------|----------------------------|--|------------------------|----------------------|----------|
| Face shows 0 other comics is some | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | 0003 | £000 | 000£ |
| Fees, charges & other service income | (741) | (213) | 116 | | | (838) | | (838) |
| Interest and investment income | (42) | | | | 42 | 0 | (147) | (147) |
| Income from precepts and NDR | | | | | | 0 | (23,922) | (23,922) |
| Government grants and contributions | (853) | | | | | (853) | (15,003) | (15,856) |
| Total Income | (1,636) | (213) | 116 | 0 | 42 | (1,691) | (39,072) | (40,763) |
| Employee expenses | 25,736 | 113 | | 8,314 | (3,485) | 30,678 | | 30,678 |
| Other service expenses | 7,508 | 94 | (116) | | | 7,486 | | 7,486 |
| Depreciation, revaluation and impairment | | 1 | | 1,441 | | 1,442 | | 1,442 |
| Interest payments | 392 | | | | (392) | 0 | 13,140 | 13,140 |
| Profit or Loss on Disposal | | | | | | 0 | (55) | (55) |
| Appropriations | 726 | | | | (726) | 0 | | 0 |
| Revenue Funding of Capital | 994 | | | | (994) | 0 | | 0 |
| Reversal of Accrued Holiday | 16 | | | | (16) | 0 | | 0 |
| Minimum Revenue Provision | 434 | | | | (434) | 0 | | 0 |
| Total Operating Expenses | 35,806 | 208 | (116) | 9,755 | (6,047) | 39,606 | 13,085 | 52,691 |
| Surplus or deficit on the provision of services | 34,170 | (5) | 0 | 9,755 | (6,005) | 37,915 | (25,987) | 11,928 |

Comparative report in 2013/14

| Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis | Service Analysis | Services and Support Services not in Analysis | Allocation of recharges | Not reported to management | Not included in Net Cost of Services | Total Cost of Services | Corporate Amounts | Total |
|---|---------------------|---|-------------------------|----------------------------|--|---------------------------|----------------------|----------|
| | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| Fees, charges & other service income | (521) | (169) | 50 | | 14 | (626) | | (626) |
| Interest and investment income | (43) | | | | 43 | 0 | (121) | (121) |
| Income from precepts and NDR | | | | | | 0 | (23,336) | (23,336) |
| Government grants and contributions | (2,516) | | | | 110 | (2,406) | (16,789) | (19,195) |
| Total Income | (3,080) | (169) | 50 | 0 | 167 | (3,032) | (40,246) | (43,278) |
| Employee expenses | 25,064 | 84 | | 7,766 | (3,464) | 29,450 | | 29,450 |
| Other service expenses | 8,852 | 65 | (50) | | | 8,867 | | 8,867 |
| Depreciation, revaluation and impairment | | 1 | | 1,601 | | 1,602 | | 1,602 |
| Interest payments | 393 | | | | (393) | 0 | 12,350 | 12,350 |
| Profit or Loss on Disposal | (1) | | | | 1 | 0 | (1) | (1) |
| Appropriations | 436 | | | | (436) | 0 | | 0 |
| Revenue Funding of Capital | 1,773 | | | | (1,773) | 0 | | 0 |
| Reversal of Accrued Holiday | (19) | | | | 19 | 0 | | 0 |
| Minimum Revenue Provision | 511 | | | | (511) | 0 | | 0 |
| Total Operating Expenses | 37,009 | 150 | (50) | 9,367 | (6,557) | 39,919 | 12,349 | 52,268 |
| Surplus or deficit on the provision of services | 33,929 | (19) | 0 | 9.367 | (6,390) | 36,887 | (27,897) | 8,990 |

8.5 Other Operating Expenditure

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|---|-----------------|
| (1) | (Profit) / loss on the disposal of assets | (55) |
| (1) | Total | (55) |

8.6 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|---|-----------------|
| 393 | Interest payable and similar charges | 392 |
| 11,957 | Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets | 12,749 |
| (32) | Interest receivable and similar income | (31) |
| (89) | Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in their fair value | (116) |
| 12,229 | Total | 12,994 |

8.7 **Taxation and Non Specific Grant Incomes**

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|--|-----------------|
| (18,995) | Council Tax Income | (19,295) |
| (4,460) | Non Domestic Rates Income | (4,628) |
| (11,266) | General Government Grants | (10,283) |
| (1,040) | Capital Grants | (965) |
| (4,364) | Gain in relation to Government grant and other contributions payable to the Pension Fund on the Authority's behalf | (3,755) |
| (40,125) | Total | (38,926) |

8.8 **Grant Income**

| | 2013/14 | 2014/15 |
|---|---------|---------|
| | £000 | £000 |
| Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income: | | |
| Council tax freeze grant | | 206 |
| Council tax transition grant | 25 | |
| Capital Fund allocation | 49 | |
| Transparency grant on going | 2 | |
| NDR grants | 34 | 173 |
| Capital grant from Government | 1,040 | 965 |
| Total | 1,150 | 1,344 |
| Credited to Service: | | |
| Bellwin reimbursement for severe flooding incident | 2,102 | |
| Firelink | 257 | 295 |
| New Dimensions | 47 | 53 |
| Thames Valley Control Grant | | 500 |
| Transparency grant set up | | 5 |
| Total | 2,406 | 853 |

The Authority has received a number of contributions that have yet to be recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies to be returned to the giver. The balances at the year-end are as follows:

| | £000£ |
|------------------------------------|-------|
| Capital Grants Receipts in Advance | (12) |
| Total | (12) |

8.9 Members' Allowances

The Authority paid the following amounts to Members of the Fire Authority during the year.

| | 2013/14 £000 | 2014/15 £000 |
|------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| Allowances | 72 | 73 |
| Expenses | 3 | 2 |
| Total | 75 | 75 |

8.10 Officers' Remuneration

Officers whose remuneration was £50,000 or more fall into the following ranges:

| Remuneration band | 2013/14 Number of employees | 2014/15 Number of employees |
|-------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| 50,000 - 54,999 | 18 | 23 |
| 55,000 - 59,999 | 6 | 7 |
| 60,000 - 64,999 | 7 | 6 |
| 65,000 - 69,999 | 2 | 0 |
| 75,000 - 79,999 | 1 | 0 |
| 70,000 - 74,999 | 0 | 0 |
| 80,000 - 84,999 | 0 | 1 |
| 85,000 - 89,999 | 0 | 0 |
| 90,000 - 94,999 | 0 | 2 |
| Total | 34 | 39 |

The table above excludes the Chief Fire Officer and Directors whose remuneration is shown in the table below.

Remuneration refers to all amounts paid to, and receivable by, an employee (excluding pension contributions) and includes sums due by way of expenses allowances, and the estimated money value of any other benefits received by an employee otherwise than in cash.

Senior employees are shown by job title in the tables below. The term senior employee applies to the Chief Fire Officer and Directors.

| Remuneration 2014-15 | | | | | |
|--|---|---------------------------------------|--|-----------------------------------|--|
| | Salary including fees and allowances | Benefit in Kind (car allowance) | Total remuneration excluding pension contributions | Employer pension contributions | Total remuneration including pension contributions |
| Chief Fire Officer | 144,765 | 8,816 | 153,581 | 28,222 | 181,803 |
| Chief Fire Officer | 144,765 | 8,816 | 153,581 | 28,222 | 181,803 |
| Deputy Chief Fire Officer 1 Deputy Chief Fire Officer 2 Deputy Chief Fire Officer | 66,294 55,197 121,491 | 5,162 2,950 8,112 | 71,456 58,147 129,603 | 10,587 12,564 23,151 | 82,043 70,711 152,754 |
| Assistant Chief Fire Officer 1 Assistant Chief Fire Officer 2 Assistant Chief Fire Officer | 41,486 62,440 103,926 | 3,687 1,548 5,235 | 45,173 63,988 109,161 | 8,690 10,099 18,789 | 53,863 74,087 127,950 |
| Director of Resources Director, Corporate Services Director of People and OD | 82,623 56,509 8,196 | 8,849 6,970 895 | 91,472 63,479 9,091 | 14,046 9,397 1,393 | 105,518 72,876 10,484 |
| Total | 517,510 | 38,877 | 556,387 | 94,998 | 651,385 |

During 2014/15, there were two individuals who held the posts of Deputy Chief Fire Officer and Assistant Chief Fire Officer.

The full-time equivalent salary of the Director, Corporate Services in 2014/15 was £78,400. This post was disestablished in January 2015.

The Director of People and Organisational Development joined in February 2015. The annual salary is £81,000.

| Remuneration 2013/14 | | | | | |
|--------------------------------|---|---------------------------------------|--|--------------------------------------|--|
| | Salary including fees and allowances | Benefit in Kind (car allowance) | Total remuneration excluding pension contributions | Employer pension contributions | Total remuneration including pension contributions |
| Chief Fire Officer 1 | 26,017 | 2,212 | 28,229 | - | 28,229 |
| Chief Fire Officer 2 | 37,708 | 2,212 | 39,920 | 8,032 | 47,952 |
| Chief Fire Officer 3 | 62,903 | 4,425 | 67,328 | 13,398 | 80,726 |
| Chief Fire Officer | 126,628 | 8,849 | 135,477 | 21,430 | 156,907 |
| | | | | | |
| Deputy Chief Fire Officer 1 | 81,782 | 6,637 | 88,419 | 16,614 | 105,033 |
| Deputy Chief Fire Officer 2 | 23,833 | 2,212 | 26,045 | 5,077 | 31,122 |
| Deputy Chief Fire Officer | 105,615 | 8,849 | 114,464 | 21,691 | 136,155 |
| | | | | | |
| Assistant Chief Fire Officer 1 | 79,599 | 6,637 | 86,236 | 15,675 | 101,911 |
| Assistant Chief Fire Office 2 | 16,066 | 1,020 | 17,086 | 3,422 | 20,508 |
| Assistant Chief Fire Officer | 95,665 | 7,657 | 103,322 | 19,097 | 122,419 |
| | | | | | |
| Director of Resources | 88,397 | 8,849 | 97,246 | 13,719 | 110,965 |
| Director Corporate Services | 68,895 | 8,849 | 77,744 | 11,712 | 89,456 |
| Total | 485,200 | 43,053 | 528,253 | 87,649 | 615,902 |

During 2013/14, there were three individuals who held the post of Chief Fire Officer and two individuals who held the posts of Deputy Chief Fire Officer and Assistant Chief Fire Officer.

The full-time equivalent salary of the Director, Corporate Services in 2013/14 was £76,550.

8.11 Exit Packages and Termination Benefits

| Exit Package Cost Band | | compulsory dancies | | r of other rtures | Total N | lumber | Total | Cost £ |
|------------------------|---------|-----------------------|---------|----------------------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 |
| £0-£20,000 | 3 | 5 | 0 | 0 | 3 | 5 | 8,332 | 4,094 |
| £40,001-£60,000 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 41,378 | 0 |
| £60,001-£80,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 62,057 |
| Total | 4 | 5 | 0 | 1 | 4 | 6 | 49,710 | 66,151 |

8.12 External Audit Costs

Fees relating to external audit and inspection are detailed below. The fees cover a financial statements audit, a value for money audit, a whole of government accounts audit and work on the National Fraud Initiative.

| | 2013/14 £000 | 2014/15 £000 |
|---|-----------------|-----------------|
| Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for the year | 45 | 45 |
| National Fraud Inititative fee | | 1 |
| Audit Commission rebate for audit fees | (9) | (4) |
| Total | 36 | 42 |

8.13 Property, Plant and Equipment

i Movement on Balances

Movements in property, plant and equipment for 2014/15 are shown in the table below.

| | Land & Building £000 | Vehicles, Plant and Equipment £000 | Assets under Construction £000 | Total Property, Plant and Equipment £000 |
|--|----------------------------|---|--------------------------------------|--|
| Cost or Valuation | | | | |
| At 1 April 2014 | 28,115 | 10,141 | 6,426 | 44,682 |
| Additions | | 82 | 1,731 | 1,813 |
| Derecognition-disposals | | (473) | | (473) |
| Derecognition-other | | | | 0 |
| Other movements in cost or valuation | 6,550 | 475 | (6,045) | 980 |
| at 31 March 2015 | 34,665 | 10,225 | 2,112 | 47,002 |
| Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment | | | | |
| At 1 April 2014 | (3,786) | (7,552) | | (11,338) |
| Depreciation Charge | (589) | (838) | | (1,427) |
| Impairment losses recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the provision of services | | | | 0 |
| Derecognition-disposals | | 470 | | 470 |
| Derecognition-other | | | | 0 |
| at 31 March 2015 | (4,375) | (7,920) | 0 | (12,295) |
| Net Book Value | | | | |
| at 31 March 2014 | 24,329 | 2,589 | 6,426 | 33,344 |
| at 31 March 2015 | 30,290 | 2,305 | 2,112 | 34,707 |

Comparative movements in 2013/14

| | Land & Building £000 | Vehicles, Plant and Equipment £000 | Assets under Construction £000 | Total Property, Plant and Equipment £000 |
|--|----------------------------|---|--------------------------------------|--|
| Cost or Valuation | | | | |
| At 1 April 2013 | 26,830 | 10,244 | 3,481 | 40,555 |
| Additions | | 169 | 3,950 | 4,119 |
| Derecognition-disposals | | (110) | | (110) |
| Derecognition-other | | (1,167) | | (1,167) |
| Other movements in cost or valuation | 1,285 | 1,005 | (1,005) | 1,285 |
| at 31 March 2014 | 28,115 | 10,141 | 6,426 | 44,682 |
| Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment | | | | |
| At 1 April 2013 | (2,862) | (8,001) | | (10,863) |
| Depreciation Charge | (524) | (828) | | (1,352) |
| Impairment losses recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the provision of services | (399) | | | (399) |
| Derecognition-disposals | | 110 | | 110 |
| Derecognition-other | (1) | 1,167 | | 1,166 |
| at 31 March 2014 | (3,786) | (7,552) | 0 | (11,338) |
| Net Book Value | | | | |
| at 31 March 2013 | 23,968 | 2,243 | 3,481 | 29,692 |
| at 31 March 2014 | 24,329 | 2,589 | 6,426 | 33,344 |

ii Depreciation

Depreciation has been calculated as follows:

Buildings – straight line over the life of the buildings or components (15-58 years) Equipment – straight line over the life of the asset (3-15 years)

Vehicles – reducing balance over the life of the asset (7-15 years). Assets donated by the Government are depreciated straight line over the remaining useful life.

The Authority's Strategic and Asset Management Committee approved extended useful lives for some categories of vehicles. The effect of this change on vehicle depreciation is a reduction of about 4% in 2014/15. However, the new asset lives better reflect the actual length of time that the Authority keeps its vehicles.

iii Capital Commitments update

At 31 March 2015, the Authority had an outstanding commitment of £367,000 relating to works at Wokingham Fire Station. The Authority also had a commitment to in relation to the final instalment for the new mobilising system of £96,000.

iv Fixed Asset Valuation

The freehold properties held by the Royal Berkshire Fire Authority are valued every five years. The properties were last inspected in March 2015, with a valuation date of 31 March 2015. The valuations were undertaken by HUB Professional Services on the undermentioned bases in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Practice and Guidance Notes of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Due to the remedial works at Wokingham Fire Station, this property has been classified as non operational as at 31 March 2015. Windsor Fire Station has been re-classified as an asset held for sale.

The sources of information and the assumptions made in producing the various valuations are set out below:

The valuations are on existing use value (EUV). Where the properties are specialised properties, such that it is not possible to form a view of the EUV by reference to normal market information, the basis of the method of valuation as stated in the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards (edition 5) is the Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC), subject to the prospect and viability of the continuance of the occupation and use.

DRC is based on an estimate of the Market Value for the existing use of the land, plus the current gross replacement (reproduction) costs of the improvements, less allowances for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation, subject to the prospect and viability of the continued occupation and use (RICS Red Book January 2014).

8.14 Investment Properties

The following item of income and expenditure has been accounted for in the *Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure* line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

| | 2013/14 £000 | 2014/15 £000 |
|--|-----------------|-----------------|
| Rental income from investment property | (11) | (11) |
| Net (gain)/loss | (11) | (11) |

The three investment properties were valued at 31 March 2015 by Hub Professional Services Ltd, in accordance with the RICS Red Book.

Based on the assessment of market values and the assessed age of the tenants, the total value of the properties is £793,000.

There are no restrictions on the Authority's ability to realise the value inherent in one of its investment properties. However, should the other two properties (worth £611,000) be sold, the Authority will be required to share half of the proceeds with the six unitary authorities in Berkshire.

The Authority has no contractual obligation to purchase, construct, develop or maintain investment properties.

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of the Authority's investment properties over the year:

| | 2013/14 | 2014/15 |
|------------------------------|---------|---------|
| | £000 | £000 |
| Balance at start of the year | 610 | 688 |
| Revaluation | 78 | 105 |
| Balance at end of the year | 688 | 793 |

8.15 Capital Expenditure and Financing

The table below shows the effect of capital expenditure on the Authority's capital financing requirement.

| | 2013/14 £000 | 2014/15 £000 |
|--|-----------------|-----------------|
| Opening Capital Financing Requirement | 7,636 | 7,140 |
| Capital investment: | | |
| Property, Plant and Equipment | 4,119 | 1,813 |
| Sources of Finance: | | |
| Capital Receipts | | |
| Government Grants and other Contributions | (2,330) | (819) |
| Revenue Funding including MRP | (2,285) | (1,428) |
| Closing Capital Financing Requirement | 7,140 | 6,706 |
| Explanation of Movements in the Year | | |
| (Decrease) in the underlying need to borrow | (496) | (434) |
| Increase / (Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement | (496) | (434) |

The Fire Authority's formally approved Capital Programme for future years is shown below. However it is normal practice for the future Capital Programme to be reviewed as part of the annual budget process.

| | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18 |
|-----------|---------|---------|---------|
| | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| Buildings | 250 | 250 | 250 |
| Equipment | 923 | | |
| Total | 1,173 | 250 | 250 |

8.16 Financial Instruments

i Categories of Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

| | Long-term | | Current | |
|---|---------------|---------------|---------------|---------------|
| | 31 March 2014 | 31 March 2015 | 31 March 2014 | 31 March 2015 |
| | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| Investments | | | | |
| Loans and receivables | | | 2,775 | 2,782 |
| Total investments | 0 | 0 | 2,775 | 2,782 |
| Trade Debtors | | | | |
| Loans and receivables | | | 181 | 935 |
| Total trade debtors | 0 | 0 | 181 | 935 |
| Borrowings | | | | |
| Financial liabilities at amortised cost | (8,842) | (8,842) | | |
| Total borrowings | (8,842) | (8,842) | 0 | 0 |
| Trade Creditors | | | | |
| Financial liabilities at amortised cost | | | (3,460) | (1,649) |
| Total creditors | 0 | 0 | (3,460) | (1,649) |
| Other liabilities | | | | |
| Finance Lease Liabilities | | | (30) | (8) |
| Total other long-term liabilities | 0 | 0 | (30) | (8) |

ii Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

| | | 2013/14 | | 2014/15 | | |
|--|--|-----------------------------------|-------|--|-----------------------------------|-------|
| | Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost | Financial Assets: Loans and | Total | Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost | Financial Assets: Loans and | |
| | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| Interest expenses | (393) | | (393) | (392) | | (392) |
| Total expense in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services | (393) | 0 | (393) | (392) | 0 | (392) |
| Interest income | | 32 | 32 | | 31 | 31 |
| Total income in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services | 0 | 32 | 32 | 0 | 31 | 31 |
| N (: 10) () | (000) | 00 | (004) | (000) | | (004) |
| Net gain/(loss) for the year | (393) | 32 | (361) | (392) | 31 | (361) |

iii Fair value of Assets and Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost

Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables are carried on the balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that take place over the remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

- For loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), premature repayment rates from the PWLB have been applied to provide the fair value under PWLB debt redemption procedures;
- No early repayment or impairment is recognised;
- Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other receivable the fair value is taken to be the principal outstanding or the billed amount;
- The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

The fair values calculated are as follows:

| | 31 March 2014 | | 31 March | 2015 |
|---------------------------------------|------------------------|------------|-----------------|------------|
| | Carrying Amount | Fair Value | Carrying Amount | Fair Value |
| | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| | | | | |
| PWLB debt | (8,842) | (10,321) | (8,842) | (11,618) |
| Trade creditors | (3,460) | (3,460) | (1,649) | (1,649) |
| Total Financial Liabilities | (12,302) | (13,781) | (10,491) | (13,267) |
| | | | | |
| Money market Loans less than one year | 2,775 | 2,775 | 2,782 | 2,782 |
| Trade debtors | 181 | 181 | 935 | 935 |
| Total Loans and Receivables | 2,956 | 2,956 | 3,717 | 3,717 |

The fair values for loans and receivables have been determined by reference to the PWLB redemption rules which provide a good approximation for the fair value of a financial instrument and include accrued interest. The comparator market rates prevailing have been taken from indicative investment rates at each balance sheet date. In practice, rates will be determined by the size of the transaction and the counterparty, but it is impractical to use these figures, and the difference is likely to be immaterial.

8.17 Nature and Extent of Risk Arising from Financial Instruments

The Authority's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The key risks are:

- Credit risk the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority;
- Liquidity risk the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make payments;
- Re-financing risk the possibility that the Authority might be requiring to renew a financial instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms.
- Market risk the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of changes in such measures as interest rates movements.

Overall Procedures for Managing Risk

The Authority's overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and implementing restrictions to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk management are set out through a legal framework in the *Local Government Act 2003* and the associated regulations. These require the Authority to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and investment guidance issued through the Act. Overall these procedures require the Authority to manage risk in the following ways:

- by formally adopting the requirements of the Code of Practice;
- by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management clauses within its standing orders;
- by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three years limiting:
 - The Authority's overall borrowing;
 - Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates;
 - Its maximum and minimum exposures regarding the maturity structure of its debt;
 - Its maximum annual exposure to investments maturing beyond a year.
- by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both investing and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with Government guidance.

These are required to be reported and approved at or before the Authority's annual Council Tax setting budget or before the start of the year to which they relate. These items are reported with the annual treasury management strategy which outlines the detailed approach to managing risk in relation to the Authority's financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported annually to Members.

The annual treasury management strategy which incorporates the prudential indicators was approved by the Fire Authority on 19 February 2014 and is available on the Authority website. The key issues within the strategy were:

- The Authorised Limit for 2014/15 was set at £9.642 million. This is the maximum limit of external borrowings or other long term liabilities.
- The Operational Boundary was expected to be £8.942 million. This is the expected level of debt and other long term liabilities during the year.
- The maximum amounts of fixed and variable interest rate exposure were set at 100% and 50% based on the Authority's net debt.

The Authority maintains written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash through Treasury Management Practices (TMPs). These TMPs are a requirement of the Code of Practice and are reviewed periodically.

ii Credit risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Authority's customers.

• This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with Fitch, Moody's and Standard & Poor's Credit Ratings Services. The Annual Investment Strategy also considers maximum amounts and time limits in respect of each financial institution. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the minimum requirements of the investment criteria outlined above. Additional selection criteria are also applied after these initial criteria are applied.

The full Investment Strategy for 2014/15 was approved by Full Authority on 19 February 2014 and is available on the Authority's website.

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Authority's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies of £2,782,000 cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Authority's deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31 March 2015 that this was likely to crystallise.

The following analysis summarises the Authority's maximum exposure to credit risk on other financial assets, based on experience of default, adjusted to reflect current market conditions.

| | Amount at 31 March 2015 £000 | Historical experience of default % | Adjustment for market conditions at 31 March 2015 % | Estimated maximum exposure at 31 March 2015 £000 | Estimated maximum exposure at 31 March 2014 £000 |
|--|---------------------------------------|---|--|---|---|
| | (a) | (b) | (c) | (a * c) | |
| Trade debtors (not including statutory debtors – Authority Tax/NNDR) | 935 | 5% | 5% | 47 | 9 |
| Total | 935 | | | 47 | 9 |

No breaches of the Authority's counterparty criteria occurred during the reporting period and the Authority does not expect any losses from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits and bonds.

Whilst the current credit crisis in international markets has raised the overall possibility of default the Authority maintains strict credit criteria for investment counterparties.

The allocation of the Authority's investments between institutions domiciled in foreign countries and in the UK was as follows:

| | 31 March 2015 | 31 March 2015 |
|-------|---------------|---------------|
| | £000 | % |
| UK | 2,782 | 100.00% |
| Total | 2,782 | 100.00% |

The Authority does not generally allow credit for its trade debtors. The past due amount can be analysed by age as follows:

| | 31 March 2014 | 31 March 2015 |
|------------------------|---------------|---------------|
| | £000 | £000 |
| Less than three months | 180 | 883 |
| Three to six months | 0 | 51 |
| Six months to one year | 1 | 1 |
| More than one year | 0 | 0 |
| Total | 181 | 935 |

During the reporting period the Authority held no collateral as security.

iii Liquidity risk

The Authority manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above (the setting and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and investment strategy reports), as well as through a comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice. This seeks to ensure that cash is available when it is needed.

The Authority has ready access to borrowings from the Money Markets to cover any day to day cash flow need, and whilst the PWLB provides access to longer term funds, it also acts as a lender of last resort (although it will not provide funding to an Authority whose actions are unlawful). The Authority is also required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.

The maturity analysis of financial assets is as follows:

| | 31 March 2014 | 31 March 2015 |
|-----------------------------|---------------|---------------|
| | £000 | £000 |
| Less than one year | 2,775 | 2,782 |
| Between one and two years | | |
| Between two and three years | | |
| More than three years | | |
| Total | 2,775 | 2,782 |

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year and are not shown in the table above.

iv Refinancing and Maturity Risk

Whilst the cash flow procedures above are considered against the refinancing risk procedures, longer term risk to the Authority relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature. This risk relates to both the maturing of longer term financial liabilities and longer term financial assets.

The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits placed on investments placed for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to address this risk. The Authority's approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and are addressed within approved parameters. These include:

- monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either new borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and
- monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the Authority's day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability of maturities and returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows, with the maximum and minimum limits for fixed interest rates maturing in each period (approved as part of the Authority's Treasury Management Strategy):

| | Approved maximum % | Approved minimum% | Actual 31 Mar 2014 £000 | Actual 31 Mar 2015 £000 |
|----------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------------------|
| Less than one year | 50% | 0% | | |
| Between one and two years | 50% | 0% | | |
| Between two and five years | 25% | 0% | | |
| Between five and ten years | 40% | 0% | 2,920 | 2,920 |
| More than ten years | 100% | 0% | 5,922 | 5,922 |
| Total | | | 8,842 | 8,842 |

v Interest rate risk

The Authority is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Authority, depending on how variable and fixed interest rates move across differing financial instrument periods. For instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the following effects:

- borrowings at variable rates the interest expense charged to the Income and Expenditure Account will rise;
- borrowings at fixed rates the fair value of the borrowing will fall (no impact on revenue balances);
- investments at variable rates the interest income credited to the Income and Expenditure Account will rise;
- investments at fixed rates the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on revenue balances).

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Income and Expenditure Account and affect the General Fund Balance.

The Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury Management Strategy draws together the Authority's prudential and treasury indicators and its expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From this strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposures. Markets and forecast interest rates are monitored during the year to adjust exposures appropriately. For instance during periods of falling interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for longer periods to secure better long term returns.

If all interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be:

| | £000 |
|--|-------|
| (Increase) in interest receivable on variable rate investments | (28) |
| Impact on (Income) and Expenditure Account | (28) |
| Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (no impact on Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account) | 1,124 |

vi Price risk

The Authority, excluding the pension fund, does not invest in equity shares or marketable bonds.

vii Foreign exchange risk

The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. It therefore has no exposure to losses arising from movements in exchange rates.

8.18 Assets Held for Sale

| | Current Assets | | |
|---|----------------------------------|-------|--|
| | 31 March 2014 31 March 2 £000 | | |
| Balance outstanding at start of year | 0 | 0 | |
| Assets newly classified as held for sale: | | | |
| Property, Plant and Equipment | 0 | 2,904 | |
| Balance outstanding at year-end | 0 | 2,904 | |

8.19 **Inventories**

| | Consumable stores | | |
|--------------------------------------|-------------------|---------------|--|
| | 31 March 2014 | 31 March 2015 | |
| | £000 | £000 | |
| Balance outstanding at start of year | 170 | 152 | |
| Purchases | 147 | 87 | |
| Recognised as an expense in the year | (165) | (136) | |
| Balance outstanding at year-end | 152 | 103 | |

8.20 **Debtors and Prepayments**

A breakdown of debtors is given in the table below:

| | 31 March 2014 £000 | 31 March 2015 £000 |
|---------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|
| Central Government | 3,557 | 715 |
| Local Authorities | 1,773 | 1,460 |
| Public Corporations | 5 | 0 |
| Other Entities | 36 | 935 |
| Total | 5,371 | 3,110 |

A breakdown of prepayments is given in the table below:

| | 31 March 2014 £000 | 31 March 2015 £000 |
|---------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|
| Local Authorities | 4 | 0 |
| Public Corporations | 0 | 0 |
| Other Entities | 835 | 849 |
| Total | 839 | 849 |

8.21 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:

| | 31 March 2014 £000 | 31 March 2015 £000 |
|---------------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|
| Cash held by the Authority | 5 | 4 |
| Bank current accounts | 8,190 | 10,158 |
| Total Cash and Cash Equivalents | 8,195 | 10,162 |

8.22 Creditors and Income in Advance

A breakdown of creditors is given in the table below:

| | 31 March 2014 | 31 March 2015 |
|---------------------|---------------|---------------|
| | £000 | £000 |
| Central Government | (768) | (515) |
| Local Authorities | (2,526) | (986) |
| Public Corporations | (16) | 0 |
| Other Entities | (1,832) | (1,651) |
| Total | (5,142) | (3,152) |

A breakdown of income in advance is given in the table below:

| | 31 March 2014 | 31 March 2015 |
|--------------------|---------------|---------------|
| | £000 | £000 |
| Central Government | 0 | 0 |
| Local Authorities | 0 | (17) |
| Other Entities | (2) | (5) |
| Total | (2) | (22) |

8.23 Provisions

The following table shows movements on the Authority's provisions.

| | Long Term | Short Term | Short Term | Short Term | Short Term | |
|----------------------|--|---|------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------------|-------|
| | Pre-2006 Pension Transfers £000 | Less favourable treatment of part-time employees £000 | NDR Appeals £000 | Contractor Costs £000 | CLG Pension Account £000 | Total |
| Bal at 1 April 2014 | (189) | (22) | (284) | 0 | 0 | (495) |
| Movement in year | 189 | 22 | (227) | (10) | (239) | (265) |
| Bal at 31 March 2015 | 0 | 0 | (511) | (10) | (239) | (760) |

A provision of £189,000 was required to cover the Authority's liability with regard to outward transfers from the Firefighters' Pension Scheme before 1 April 2006. The provision has been used to meet these costs.

A provision was required in respect of current and former retained firefighters who suffered unfair treatment compared to wholetime firefighters. Payment has been made and the provision is no longer required.

A provision has been made for the Authority's share of outstanding Business Rates appeals. This is based on the latest list of outstanding rating list proposals provided by the Valuation Office Agency, taking into account factors such as the settled claims history, changes in comparable hereditaments, market trends and other valuation issues, including the potential for certain proposals to be withdrawn. The provision is split between the six unitary councils of Berkshire, the Government and the Fire Authority. The Authority's share of the provision is 1% and amounts to £511,000.

A provision has been made in relation to a contract. Negotiations are on-going.

A provision has been made in relation to a possible repayment to Government relating to injury awards to firefighters that were paid out of the Authority's Pension Account instead of the Authority's revenue account.

8.24 Contingent Liabilities

As a result of an Employment Tribunal judgment, retained duty staff will have the right to buy back pensionable service for the period 1 July 2000 to 5 April 2006. A deficit will be created as members purchase past service rights over the coming months. The extent of this deficit will be established at subsequent valuations of the Firefighters' Pension Schemes. Government policy is that any scheme deficit will be recovered from employers by adjusting employer contribution rates over a 15 year period.

8.25 Leases

i Finance Leases

The Authority's finance leases relate to vehicles.

The assets under finance leases are valued in the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts:

| | 31 March 2014 £000 | 31 March 2015 £000 |
|----------|-----------------------|-----------------------|
| Vehicles | 8 | 5 |

The minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounts:

| | 31 March 2014 | 31 March 2015 |
|--|---------------|---------------|
| Finance lease liabilities (net present value of minimum lease payments): | £000 | £000 |
| Current | (30) | (8) |
| Finance costs payable in future years | 0 | 0 |
| Minimum lease payments | (30) | (8) |

The minimum lease payments for leases ending:

| | Minimum Lease Payments | | Finance Leas | se Liabilities |
|-------------------------|-----------------------------|------|-------------------------------|----------------|
| | 31 March 2014 31 March 2015 | | 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 3 | |
| | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| Not later than one year | (30) | (8) | (30) | (8) |
| | (30) | (8) | (30) | (8) |

ii Operating Leases

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

| | 31 March 2014 £000 | 31 March 2015 £000 |
|---|-----------------------|-----------------------|
| Not later than one year | 21 | 15 |
| Later than one year and not later than five years | 7 | 4 |
| | 28 | 19 |

The expenditure charged in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to the leases is shown below.

| | 2013/14 £000 | 2014/15 £000 |
|-------------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| Operational Response | 18 | 18 |
| Statutory Inspection | 1 | 1 |
| Prevention and Education | 1 | 1 |
| Communications and Mobilising | 1 | 1 |
| Total minimum lease payments | 21 | 21 |

8.26 Pensions Costs

i Participation in Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Authority offers retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Authority is required to disclose the accrued benefit in its accounts.

The Authority participates in three pension schemes:

The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund is for non-uniformed employees and is administered by the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead under the regulations governing the Local Government Pension Scheme. This is a funded scheme, meaning that the Authority and employees pay contributions into the fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment assets.

In addition to the 1992 Firefighters' Scheme (now closed to new recruits) a new firefighters' scheme was set up in April 2006. The new scheme has different contribution rates for employees and employers. Both firefighters' pension schemes are unfunded, meaning that no investment assets are built up to meet the pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension payments as they eventually fall due.

ii Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

The costs of retirement benefits are recognised in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Authority is required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the movement in Reserves Statement.

The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

| | Local Government | | Fire-fighter | s Scheme |
|---|------------------|-----------------|--------------|----------|
| | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 |
| | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 |
| Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | | | | |
| Cost of Services: | | | | |
| Service cost comprising: | | | | |
| - current service cost | 1,048 | 1,182 | 6,725 | 7,132 |
| - past service cost | | | | |
| -(gain)/loss from settlemetns | | | | |
| -administration costs | 12 | 11 | | |
| Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure | | | | |
| Net interest expense | 411 | 465 | 11,534 | 12,273 |
| -interest cost | | | | |
| -expected return on assets in the scheme | | | | |
| Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services | 1,471 | 1,658 | 18,259 | 19,405 |
| Other Post Employment Benefits charged to the | | | | |
| Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | | | | |
| - actuarial (gains) and losses | 0 | | 0 | |
| Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability | | | | |
| comprising: | | | | |
| - Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in | 0.40 | (705) | | |
| the net interest expense) | 246 | (765) | | |
| - Acturial gains and losses arising on the changes in | (4.450) | | 0.000 | |
| demographic assumptions | (1,159) | | 6,260 | |
| - Acturial gains and losses arising on the changes in financial | 005 | 4.440 | 44.044 | 40.050 |
| assumptions | 895 | 4,142 | 11,211 | 43,652 |
| - Other | 657 | | (196) | 110 |
| Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | 2,110 | 5,035 | 35,534 | 63,167 |
| Movement in Reserves Statement | | | | |
| - Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for | | | | |
| the Provision of Services for post-employment benefits in | (1,464) | (1,658) | (18,259) | (19,405) |
| accordance with the Code | (, -) | (, , , , , , , | (2, 22) | (2, 22, |
| | (1,464) | (1,658) | (18,259) | (19,405) |
| Actual Amount Charged against the General Fund Balance | () - / | ():::/ | (2, 22, | (2, 22, |
| for pensions in the year: | | | | |
| - employer's contributions payable to scheme | 672 | 775 | | |
| - Retirement benefits payable to pensioners | | | 7,069 | 6,169 |
| - net transfers | | | 73 | 297 |
| - government grant payable to the Pension Fund on behalf of | | | | |
| the Authority | | | (4,364) | (3,755) |
| | 672 | 775 | 2,778 | 2,711 |

iii Liabilities and Assets in Relation to Post-employment Benefits

Reconciliation of the present value of the schemes' liabilities is shown below.

| | Local Government Pension Scheme | | Fire-fighters Pension Scheme | |
|--|---------------------------------|-----------------|---------------------------------|-----------------|
| | | | | |
| | 2013/14 £000 | 2014/15 £000 | 2013/14 £000 | 2014/15 £000 |
| | | | | |
| Opening balance at 1 April | 24,243 | 25,786 | 256,900 | 285,292 |
| Current Service Cost | 1,048 | 1,182 | 6,725 | 7,132 |
| Interest Cost | 1,113 | 1,147 | 11,534 | 12,273 |
| Contributions by Scheme Participants | 275 | 309 | 1,620 | 1,737 |
| Remeasurement(gains) and losses | | | | |
| - Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in | | | | |
| demographic assumptions | (1,159) | | 6,260 | |
| - Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial | | | | |
| assumptions | 895 | 4,142 | 11,211 | 43,652 |
| - Others | (298) | | (196) | 110 |
| Actuarial losses / (gains) | | | | |
| Past Service Cost | | | | |
| Losses / (gains) on curtailments | | | | |
| Liabilites assumed on entity combinations | | | | |
| Benefits paid | (331) | (877) | (8,689) | (7,906) |
| Net transfers | | | (73) | (298) |
| Liabilities extinguished on settlements | | | | |
| Closing balance at 31 March | 25,786 | 31,689 | 285,292 | 341,992 |

Reconciliation of the fair value of the schemes' assets is shown below.

| | Local Government Pension | |
|--|--------------------------|-----------------|
| | 2013/14 £000 | 2014/15 £000 |
| Opening fair value of scheme assets at 1 April | 14,959 | 15,068 |
| Expected return on Scheme assets | | |
| Interest income | 702 | 682 |
| Actuarial gains/(losses) | | |
| | | |
| Remeasurement gain/(loss) | | |
| - The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in the net interest expense | (1,201) | 765 |
| - Administration costs | (12) | (12) |
| Contributions from employers | 676 | 775 |
| Contributions from employees into the scheme | 275 | 309 |
| Benefits paid | (331) | (877) |
| Closing fair value of scheme assets at 31 March | 15,068 | 16,710 |

iv Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

| | Local Government Pension Scheme | | Fire-fighters | Fire-fighters Pension Schemes | |
|---|---------------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-------------------------------|--|
| | 2013/14 £000 | 2014/15 £000 | 2013/14 £000 | 17 | |
| Present value of the defined benefit obligation | 25,786 | 31,689 | 285,292 | 341,992 | |
| Fair value of plan assets | (15,068) | (16,710) | 0 | 0 | |
| Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation | 10,718 | 14,979 | 285,292 | 341,992 | |

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Authority has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. The total liability of £356.97 million has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Authority as recorded in the balance sheet, resulting in a negative overall balance of £314.54 million. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Authority remains healthy:

- the deficit on the Local Government Scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary;
- finance is only required to be raised to cover firefighters' pensions when the pensions are actually paid.

V Impact on the Authority's Cash Flows

In respect of the Local Government Pension Scheme, contributions are set every three years as a result of the actuarial valuation of the Fund. The next valuation will be carried out on 31 March 2016 and will set contributions for the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020. There are no minimum funding requirements but contributions are set to target a funding level of 100%.

Government valuations of the Firefighters' Pension Scheme take place every four years. As Firefighters' Pension Schemes are unfunded there is no pot of assets to determine if sufficient contributions have been paid to meet the cost of rights accrued. Instead, the valuation is done by creating and tracking the value of a notional fund. Government policy is that any scheme deficit will be recovered from employers by adjusting employer contributions over a period of 15 years.

vi Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. These have been assessed by Barnett Waddingham and Hymans Robertson, independent firms of actuaries.

The main assumptions used in their calculations are shown in the table below.

| | Local Gov | | | ghters |
|----------------------------------|----------------------|-------------------|-----------------|---------|
| | Pension 9 2013/14 | scneme 2014/15 | Pension 2013/14 | 2014/15 |
| Mortality Assumptions: | | | | |
| Longevity (at age 65 for LGPS | | | | |
| members and at age 60 for | | | | |
| Firefighter Scheme members) for | | | | |
| current pensioners: | | | | |
| - Men | 22.7 | 22.8 | 29.3 | 29.5 |
| - Women | 26.0 | 26.1 | 31.5 | 31.7 |
| Longevity (at age 65 for LGPS | | | | |
| members and at age 60 for | | | | |
| Firefighter Scheme members) for | | | | |
| future pensioners: | | | | |
| - Men | 24.9 | 25.1 | 30.9 | 31.7 |
| - Women | 28.3 | 28.4 | 32.5 | 33.2 |
| Rate of RPI | 3.7% | 3.3% | 3.6% | 3.3% |
| Rate of CPI | 2.9% | 2.5% | | |
| Rate of increase in salaries | 4.7% | 4.3% | 3.8% | 3.4% |
| Rate of increase in pensions | 2.9% | 2.5% | 2.8% | 2.4% |
| Rate for discounting liabilities | 4.5% | 3.4% | 4.5% | 3.2% |
| Take-up of option to convert | | | | |
| annual pension into retirement | 50% | 50% | 90% | 90% |
| lump sum | | | | |

The Firefighters' Pension Schemes have no assets to cover their liabilities. The Local Government Pension Scheme's assets consist of the following categories:

| | Bid Value | | | |
|--|-----------------|-----------------|--|--|
| | 2013/14 £000 | 2014/15 £000 | | |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents | 302 | 917 | | |
| Gilts LIK Public Sector quoted fixed | | | | |
| -UK Public Sector quoted fixed interest securities | 151 | 234 | | |
| Other Bonds | 2,411 | 2,357 | | |
| Equity instruments: | 6,325 | 7,424 | | |
| Property | 1,809 | 2,057 | | |
| Target Return Assets -another pooled Unit Trust investment | 2,713 | 2,966 | | |
| Commodities -overseas investments | 1,357 | 654 | | |
| Infrastructure -overseas investments | 603 | 720 | | |
| Longevity Insurance | (603) | (619) | | |
| Total Assets | 15,068 | 16,710 | | |

There is no provision under the LGPS to split the total assets of the Fund to each participating body. Therefore, for the basis of this disclosure, the above assets as a whole are allocated to participating bodies on a consistent and reasonable basis.

8.27 Usable Reserves

Movements in the Authority's usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

8.28 Unusable Reserves

| 31 March 2014 | | 31 March 2015 |
|---------------|------------------------------------|---------------|
| £000 | | £000 |
| 2,379 | Revaluation Reserve | 6,165 |
| 24,513 | Capital Adjustment Account | 25,529 |
| (296,003) | Pension Reserve | (356,971) |
| 254 | Collection Fund Adjustment Account | 53 |
| (202) | Accumulated Absences Account | (187) |
| (269,059) | Total Unusable Reserves | (325,411) |

i Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment.

The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
- disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|---|-----------------|
| | Balance as at 1 April | 2,379 |
| , | Upward revaluation of assets not charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services | 3,894 |
| (63) | Difference between fair value depreciation and historic cost depreciation | (108) |
| 2,379 | Balance as at 31 March | 6,165 |

ii Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provision. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties that have yet to be consumed by the Authority.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Note 8.2 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the Revaluation Reserve.

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|--|-----------------|
| 21,359 | Balance at 1 April | 24,513 |
| | Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the CIES: | |
| (1,751) | Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets | (1,426) |
| | Revaluation amounts on Property,Plant and Equipment | (15) |
| | Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES | (3) |
| 19,608 | | 23,069 |
| 63 | Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve | 108 |
| 19,671 | Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year | 23,177 |
| | Capital financing applied in the year: | |
| 1,040 | Capital grants and contributions credited to the CIES that have been applied to capital financing | 819 |
| 1,290 | Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account | |
| 512 | Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charges against the General Fund | 434 |
| 1,773 | Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund | 994 |
| 4,615 | | 2,247 |
| 78 | Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or credited to the CIES | 105 |
| 149 | Movements in revaluation of PPE debited or credited to the CIES | |
| 24,513 | Balance at 31 March | 25,529 |

iii Pension Reserve

The pension reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provision. The Authority accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed, as the Authority makes employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|---------------------------------------|--|-----------------|
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | Balance at 1 April | (296,003) |
| (17,919) | Actuarial gains or losses on pensions assets and liabilities | (47,139) |
| (19,723) | Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement | (21,063) |
| 0 | Adjustment for closure of Training Company Pension Scheme | (7) |
| 7,814 | Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year | 7,241 |
| (296,003) | Balance at 31 March | (356,971) |

iv Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and non-domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax payers and business rates payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund.

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|--|-----------------|
| 135 | Balance at 1 April | 254 |
| | Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from council tax and non-domestic rates income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements | (201) |
| 254 | Balance at 31 March | 53 |

V Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|---|-----------------|
| (183) | Balance at 1 April | (202) |
| 10.3 | Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year | 202 |
| (202) | Amounts accrued at the end of the current year | (187) |
| (202) | Balance at 31 March | (187) |

8.29 Related Parties

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Authority, or to be controlled or influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Authority might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently, or might have secured the ability to limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the Authority.

Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Authority has with other parties. It also provided direct financial support to the Authority in 2014/15.

Other Public Bodies. The Authority signed a legal agreement with Oxfordshire County Council and Buckinghamshire and Milton Keynes Fire Authority to work collaboratively towards the establishment of the Thames Valley Fire Control Service (TVFCS). Due to delays in the project, the three partners were still operating control rooms independently as at the 31 March 2015. TVFCS went live in April 2015.

The Authority and Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority have contracted to work together to provide fleet maintenance services across their combined geographical area in order to share resources and reduce costs in connection with the discharge of their functions. The Authority also shares a procurement function with Buckinghamshire and Milton Keynes Fire Authority.

Assisted organisations. The Authority does not provide any significant financial assistance to outside bodies that are outside of its normal contractual arrangements.

Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority's financial and operational policies. However any contracts entered into are in full compliance with the Authority's constitution and any decisions are made with proper consideration of declarations of interest. Details of any material interests are recorded in the Register of Members' Interests, which is open to public inspection. As at 31st March 2015, Mr P Bryant and Mr P Bicknell (Members of the Fire Authority) were Directors of Royal Berkshire Fire & Rescue (Training) Ltd. The relationship between Royal Berkshire Fire & Rescue (Training) Ltd and the Authority is described below under the heading *Companies and Joint Ventures*.

Senior Officers of the Authority have control over the day-to-day management of the Authority and all senior officers have been asked to declare any related party transactions.

Companies and Joint Ventures. Royal Berkshire Fire & Rescue (Training) Ltd is a fully owned subsidiary of the Fire Authority. It was set up to provide fire safety courses to commercial organisations. Any profits generated by the company are returned to the Fire Authority. Details on the performance of the company can be seen in note 4.7.

8.30 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies as set out in 8.1, the Authority has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.

The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

- There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. However, the Authority has robust contingency plans to protect service provision.
- Although a judgement has been made that Royal Berkshire Fire & Rescue
 (Training) Ltd is a subsidiary of the Authority, a decision has been taken to account
 for the transactions of the company as if they occurred within the boundaries of the
 Authority, i.e. a decision has been made not to produce group accounts on the
 basis of materiality.

8.31 Assumptions about the future and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those estimates. The key judgements and estimation uncertainty could impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are set out below.

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in the retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. Actuaries are engaged to provide the Authority with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.

The following table sets out the impact for the Local Government Pension Scheme of a small change in the discount rates on the defined benefit obligation and projected service cost along with an age rating adjustment of +/- one year to the mortality assumption.

| Local Government Pension Scheme | £000 | £000 | £000 |
|--|---------|--------|----------|
| Adjustment to discount rate | +0.1% | 0% | -0.1% |
| Present value of total obligation | 31,060 | 31,689 | 32,332 |
| Projected service cost | 1,396 | 1,429 | 1,463 |
| Adjustment to long term salary increase | | | |
| Present value of total obligation | 31,798 | 31,689 | 31,581 |
| Projected service cost | 1,429 | 1,429 | 1,429 |
| Adjustment to pension increases and deferred revaluation | | | |
| Present value of total obligation | 32,227 | 31,689 | 31,162 |
| Projected service cost | 1,463 | 1,429 | 1,396 |
| Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption | +1 year | None | - 1 year |
| Present value of total obligation | 30,592 | 31,689 | 32,796 |
| Projected service cost | 1,380 | 1,429 | 1,478 |

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the Firefighters' Scheme liabilities are set out below.

| Firefighters' Pension Scheme - effect on scheme liabilities | % increase | £000 |
|---|------------|------------|
| 0.1% decrease in the real discount rate | 2% | 7,115 |
| 1 year increase in member life expectancy | 3% | 10,256 |
| 0.5% increase in the salary increase rate | 2% | 7,080 |
| 0.5% increase in the pensions increase rate | 9% | 29,438 |
| Firefighters' Pension Scheme - effect on current service cost | % increase | £000 |
| 0.1% decrease in the real discount rate | 3% | 250 |
| | | |
| 1 year increase in member life expectancy | 3% | 220 |
| year increase in member life expectancy o.5% increase in the salary increase rate | 3% 5% | 220 400 |

8.32 Events after the Balance Sheet date

The date for approval of the Authority's Accounts is 30 September 2015. Events taking place after this date will not be reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date provide information about conditions existing at 31 March 2015 the effects must be disclosed in the accounts. There is one non-adjusting event that requires disclosure as detailed below.

In May 2015, the Pensions Ombudsman (Ombudsman) published their Final Determination in the case of Milne v Government Actuaries Department (GAD). This case centred on whether GAD had a proactive responsibility to review the commutation factors used in the calculation of the lump sum payments made to pensioners when they opt to take an increased amount of their pension benefit in that form.

The Ombudsman found in favour of the plaintiff, which meant that for all Firefighters Pension Scheme 1992 cases where pension entitlements were drawn between 1 December 2001 and 22 August 2006 recalculation of lump sum payments should take place based upon revised commutation factors to be issued by GAD. Payment of any additional amounts identified as due should be made with simple interest calculations as well.

We are currently working through the revised calculations and expect to make the necessary payments by 31/12/2015. There has therefore been no impact on the financial statements for 2014/15.

8.33 Standards issued but not yet adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom requires the disclosure of information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. This applies to the adoption of the following new or amended standards within the 2015/16 Code:

- IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. This standard provides a consistent definition of fair value and enhanced disclosure requirements. It is designed to apply to assets and liabilities covered by those IFRSs that currently permit or require measurement at fair value. The adoption of this standard will require surplus assets to be revalued to market value rather than value in existing use as at present.
- IFRIC 21 Levies. This standard provides guidance on levies imposed by government in the financial statements of entities paying the levy.
- Minor amendments to IFRSs (2011 2013 Cycle).

It is not anticipated that any of the revised standards will have a material impact on the amounts disclosed.

8.34 Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|--|-----------------|
| | Cash Outflows: | |
| (19,738) | Employment costs | (20,208) |
| (9,215) | Pension costs | (9,690) |
| (412) | Interest paid | (392) |
| (7,218) | Other operating costs | (9,845) |
| (36,583) | Total Cash Outflows | (40,135) |
| | Cash Inflows: | |
| 34,152 | Precepts and General Government Grants | 34,874 |
| 3,545 | Pension top-up grant | 4,430 |
| 37 | Interest received | 36 |
| 898 | Other operating income | 3,390 |
| 38,632 | Total Cash Inflows | 42,730 |
| 2,049 | Net cash flows from operating activities | 2,595 |

8.35 Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|--|-----------------|
| (3,837) | Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets | (1,574) |
| (7) | Purchase of short-term and long-term investments | (6) |
| 1 | Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets | 8 |
| 1,040 | Capital Grants Received | 965 |
| 6 | Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments | 6 |
| (2,797) | Net cash outflows from investing activities | (601) |

8.36 Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|---|-----------------|
| (96) | Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating to finance leases | (27) |
| (96) | Net cash flows from financing activities | (27) |

9. Financial Statements for the Firefighters' Pension Fund

Financial Arrangements for the Firefighters' Pension Schemes

Before 1 April 2006, Fire authorities suffered budgetary volatility due to fluctuations in the number of firefighters retiring in any given year. To overcome this problem, Central Government decided that fire authorities must keep a separate Pensions Account from which pensions will be paid. On the income side, employer and employee contributions are paid into the account. Employer contributions consist of flat rate contributions and an ill-health charge. Ill-health charges are spread over three years. Transfer values for firefighters that transfer into and out of the scheme are also posted to the account. If the account is in deficit at the end of the financial year, the Government will provide a top-up to bring the account into balance.

ii Pension Fund Account

| 2013/14 £000 | | 2014/15 £000 |
|-----------------|------------------------------------|-----------------|
| | Contributions Receivable: | |
| (2,435) | Employer Flat Rate Contributions | (2,347) |
| (80) | Employer III-Health Contributions | (19) |
| (1,623) | Employee Contributions | (1,737) |
| (65) | Transfers In | (47) |
| | Miscellaneous Income | (128) |
| | | |
| | Benefits Payable: | |
| 6,363 | Pensions | 6,654 |
| 2,065 | Commutations and Lump Sum Benefits | 907 |
| 139 | Transfers Out | 472 |
| | | |
| 4,364 | Net amount payable for the year | 3,755 |
| 4,364 | Top-up Grant Receivable | 3,755 |

iii Net Assets Statement

| 31 March 2014 £000 | | 31 March 2015 £000 |
|-----------------------|---|-----------------------|
| 838 | Prepayment of April pension paid in March | 857 |
| 915 | Top-up Grant receivable from the Government | 240 |
| 0 | Amount owing from the General Fund | 0 |
| 1,753 | Total Assets | 1,097 |
| (1,753) | Amount owing to the General Fund | (1,097) |
| 0 | Top-up Grant payable to the Government | 0 |
| (1,753) | Total Liabilities | (1,097) |

| | 0 | Net Assets | 0 |
|---|---|------------|---|
| п | | | |

It should be noted that the Fund's financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after 2014/15. These liabilities are shown in the Authority's main financial statements.

10. Glossary of Financial Terms

Accrual

The concept that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as money is received or paid.

Accounting Policies

The specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the authority in preparing and presenting financial statements.

Appropriations

Amounts transferred to or from revenue or capital reserves.

Balance

The surplus or deficit on any account at the end of the year.

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet is fundamental to the understanding of the Authority's financial position at the year-end. It shows the Authority's balances and reserves, its long term indebtedness, and the non-current and current assets employed in the Authority's operations, together with summarised information on the non-current assets held.

Budget

A statement defining in financial terms the Authority's plans over a specific period. The budget is prepared as part of the process of setting the precept.

Capital Adjustment Account

Provides a balancing mechanism between the different rates at which assets are depreciated under IFRS and are financed through the capital control systems.

Capital Charge

A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of property, plant and equipment used in the provision of services.

Capital Expenditure

The acquisition of property, plant and equipment which will have a long-term value to the Authority, e.g. land, buildings, vehicles.

Capital Financing Requirement

This measures the underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure.

Capital Receipt

The proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets. Capital receipts can be used to finance new capital expenditure within the rules laid down by the Government. They cannot be used to finance day-to-day spending.

CIES

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, one of the schedules required in the Statement of Accounts.

CIPFA

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. The accounting body which provides accounting guidance to the public sector. The guidance provided by CIPFA is defined as 'proper practice' and has statutory backing.

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account provides a mechanism for recognising the Authority's share of the Collection Fund surplus/deficits at year end.

Commutation

This is where a member of the pension scheme gives up part of their pension in exchange for an immediate lump sum payment.

Contingency

A condition which exists at the balance sheet date, where the outcome will only be confirmed on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events.

Corporate & Democratic Core

The corporate and democratic core is concerned with the costs of corporate policy making and member-based activities. Other costs relate to the general running of the Authority including corporate management, public accountability and treasury management.

Corporate Governance

This is concerned with the Authority's accountability for the stewardship of resources, risk management and relationship with the community. It also encompasses policies on whistle blowing, fraud and corruption.

Council Tax

The means of raising money locally which pays for Fire Authority services. This is a property based tax where the amount levied depends on the valuation of each dwelling.

Creditors

Amounts owed by the Authority for work done, goods received or services rendered but for which payment has not been made at the balance sheet date.

Current Assets

Items from which the Authority derives a benefit but which will be consumed or realised during the next accounting period, e.g. stocks, debtors, and cash.

Current Liabilities

The sum of money owed by the Authority and due for payment during the next accounting period, e.g. short term borrowing and creditors.

Debtors

Sums of money due to the Authority for work done, goods sold or services rendered but not received at the balance sheet date.

Deferred Liability

Amounts owed by the Authority for work done, goods received or services rendered to be paid in predetermined instalments over more than one accounting period.

Defined Benefits Scheme

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme where the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded.

Depreciation

The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful life of an asset.

Fair Value

Fair value is based on market value. The fair value of investments or loans is based on the prevailing interest rates rather than the actual rates payable or receivable.

Financial Instrument

This is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity of another. The term covers both financial assets (e.g. loans receivable) and financial liabilities (e.g. borrowings).

Finance Lease

A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee. Such a transfer of risks and rewards may be presumed to occur if at the inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any initial payment, amounts to substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset.

Financial Reporting Standards

These are accounting standards developed by the Accounting Standards which Board set out the correct accounting treatment for financial transactions.

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

Provides a balancing mechanism between the different rates at which discounts on the early repayment of debt are recognised under the SORP and are required by statute to be met from the general fund. It should be noted this reserve is matched by borrowings and investments within the Balance Sheet. They are not resources available to the Authority.

Funded Pension Scheme

A funded pension scheme is one in which the future liabilities for pension benefits are provided for by the accumulation of assets held externally to the employer's business.

Going Concern

The concept that the Authority will remain in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Government Grants

Assistance by government and intergovernment agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national or international, in the form of cash or transfers of assets to the Authority, in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities of the Authority.

Gross Expenditure

The total cost of providing the Authority's services before taking into account any income from specific government grants, fees and charges.

Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are defined as assets preserved in trust for future generations because of their cultural, environmental or historical associations, which have historical, artistic, scientific, geophysical or environmental qualities, and which are held and maintained by the Authority, principally for the contribution to knowledge and culture.

IAS

International Accounting Standards (IASs) were issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) from 1973 to 2001.

IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) since 2001.

Impairment

A reduction in the value of a non-current asset below its carrying amount on the balance sheet.

Intangible Assets

These are assets that have no physical substance, for example, the purchase of computer software licences.

Inventories

The amount of unused or unconsumed stocks held in expectation for future use. When use will not arise until a later period, it is appropriate to carry forward the amount to be matched to the use or consumption when it arises.

IRMP

Integrated Risk Management Plan. The Plan is premised on ensuring that the Authority recognises risk and manages its resources to reduce potential impact on the communities which it serves.

Long Term Borrowing

Loans that are raised with external bodies, for periods greater than one year.

Medium Term Financial Plan

Budget plan for the Authority for the next three years.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

The minimum amount that the Authority must set aside from its revenue resources each year as a provision for debt incurred in financing capital expenditure.

Net Book Value

The amount at which fixed assets are included in the Balance Sheet, i.e. their historical cost or current cost, less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation and/or impairment.

Net Current Replacement Cost

The cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing condition and in its existing use, i.e. the cost of its replacement or of the nearest equivalent asset, adjusted to reflect the current condition of the existing asset.

New Dimension Assets

Vehicles and equipment for use in major incidents, originally operated by Fire and Rescue Authorities but owned by the Department for Communities and Local Government. Ownership for those assets located in the Authority's area transferred to the Authority during 2011-12.

Non-Current Assets

Tangible assets that yield benefits to the Authority and the services it provides for a period of more than one year.

Non-Distributed Costs

Costs incurred by the Authority which are excluded from service costs. These include past service costs relating to changes in pension regulations, the costs associated with unused shares of ICT facilities, and impairment losses relating to assets under construction.

Non-Operational Assets

Non-current assets held by the Authority but not directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery of services.

Operating Lease

A lease, or rental, other than a finance lease.

Operational Assets

Assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the Authority in the direct delivery of those services for which it either has a statutory or discretionary responsibility.

Pension Fund Account

The Fire and Rescue Authority is required to set up a separate fund from the rest of its operation for transactions relating to firefighters' pension arrangements. The Authority has a formal responsibility for paying firefighters' pensions. The fund is balanced to nil each year by the receipt of a pensions top-up grant from the Department for Communities and Local Government.

Precept

An amount of money levied by one Authority (the precepting authority) which is collected by another Authority (the billing authority) as part of council tax. The Fire Authority is the precepting Authority and the six unitary authorities in Berkshire are the billing authorities.

Prior Period Adjustments

Those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting policies or from the correction of fundamental errors. A fundamental error is one that is of such significance as to destroy the validity of the financial statements. They do not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of accounting estimates made in prior years.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance, acquired by capital expenditure, to yield benefits to the Authority for more than one year.

Provisions

Provisions are amounts set aside to cover liabilities or losses, which are likely or certain to be incurred but there is uncertainty as to the amounts or the dates on which they will arise.

Prudential Code

The purpose of the Code is to ensure that capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

PWLB

Public Works Loan Board.

Remuneration

All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expenses allowances (as far as those sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money value of any other benefits received other than in cash. Pension contributions payable by the employer are excluded.

Reserves

Accumulated funds that finance the net assets. Usable reserves are generated from realised gains and can be used to finance day-to-day operations. Unusable reserves are generated from unrealised gains and are not available to finance revenue deficits.

Revaluation Reserve

This reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation, from holding non-current assets.

Revenue Expenditure

This is expenditure on day-to-day running costs and consists mainly of salaries and general running expenses.

Revenue Support Grant

This is Government grant in aid of the Authority's services generally. It is based upon the Government's assessment of how much the Authority needs to spend in order to provide a standard level of service.

SERCOP

The Service Reporting Code of Practice (SERCOP) is a methodology for presenting the service expenditure of the Authority in a way which identifies the total cost of each main operational activity (including an apportionment of capital charges and support service overheads). All authorities are expected to adopt this approach in order to facilitate comparison of costs between authorities.

SOLACE

Society of Local Authority Chief Executives

Unfunded Pension Scheme

A pension scheme in which liabilities for pension benefits are charged to the employer's revenue account in the year in which they arise and are not financed from investments held. The Authority operates such a scheme for its firefighters.